
AGENDA FOR

COVID 19 – EMERGENCY POWERS GROUP

Contact:: Julie Gallagher
Direct Line: 0161 253 6640
E-mail: julie.gallagher@bury.gov.uk
Web Site: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Covid 19 Emergency Powers Group

Councillors : D Jones, N Jones, J Mason, E O'Brien, 
T Pickstone, A Simpson and T Tariq

Dear Member/Colleague

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Covid 19 Emergency 
Powers Group which will be held as follows:-

Date: Thursday, 23 April 2020

Place: Conference Call

Time: 2.00 pm

Briefing

Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the 
related report should be contacted.

Notes:



AGENDA

1  SPECIAL URGENCY (EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS)  (Pages 1 - 22)

Key Decision – Community Hubs and Council Investment
That in accordance with the Council Constitution’s Special Urgency 
procedure, the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny and the Group Leaders 
agreed that the decisions detailed above could not be reasonably be 
deferred.

Non Key decision Muslim Burials

2  SPECIAL URGENCY (COUNCIL FUNCTIONS)  (Pages 23 - 28)

That in accordance with the Council Constitution’s Special Urgency 
procedure, the relevant committee Chair and the Group Leaders 
agreed that the decisions detailed above could not be reasonably be 
deferred.
Payment of agency and Supply Workers

3  NOTES FROM THE MEETING OF THE COVID 19 EPG  (Pages 29 - 34)



April 2015

TO BE UPLOADED ON TO THE INTERNET BY DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

Date: 23.4.2020 Ref No:

Type of Decision:

Cabinet Decision Council Decision

Key X Non-Key

Subject matter:

COMMUNITY HUBS UPDATE

Reason for Urgency:

A key part of Bury’s Covid 19 emergency response has been the establishment of five 
Community Hubs, to provide the infrastructure to support vulnerable people. The initial 
priority was to support those clinically vulnerable.

This paper sets out proposals to take this agenda forward

Freedom of Information Status   In public domain

Equality Impact Assessment 

[Does this decision change policy, 
procedure or working practice or 
negatively impact on a group of 
people?  If yes – complete EIA and 
summarise issues identified and 
recommendations – forward EIA to 
Corporate HR]

URGENT DECISION FORM

Document Pack Page 1 Agenda Item 1



April 2015

Decision taken:

 The Community Hub Teams do not take a role in proactively contacting residents 
identified as vulnerable to Covid 19. Proactive case management will instead continue 
within health and care teams and Housing with referrals to Hubs for support outside of 
service provision as appropriate and referrals will continue to be taken from the 
National Shielding Contact Centre.

 A digital consultation exercise is held to invite wider communities to indicate what 
support they would like from the Hubs and the help and capacity they can bring

 Communication continues around the work of the Hubs including encouraging residents 
to self-identify and agree to the Council processing their information in order that we 
may update our records and provide proactive support

 Community Hubs are developed to provide community infrastructure; manage formal 
referrals and develop and direct residents to self-help materials

 A Public Service Partnership hub is established to take a data-led approach to 
management of issues outside the community and health & care remit

 A detailed neighbourhood model of governance is developed

Decision taken by: Signature: Date:

Chief/Senior Officer/Cabinet Chair 23.4.2020

After consultation with:

Cabinet  Member (if a Key Decision) or 
Chair or Lead Member (as appropriate)

Councillor S Briggs 23.4.2020

If it is a Key Decision, the Chair of 
Scrutiny Committee to agree that the 
decision cannot be deferred

Councillor R Caserta consulted 23.4.2020

Opposition Leader or nominated 
spokesperson (Council Decision) or

Leader or Majority Group Member on 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (if a 
Key Decision)  to agree that the decision 
cannot be deferred

Councillor N Jones consulted 23.4.2020

Leader of second largest Opposition 
Group (if a Key/Council Decision) to 
agree that the decision cannot be 
deferred

Councillor T Pickstone 
consulted

23.4.2020

Although not a requirement of the Constitution Councillor James Mason, Leader of Radcliff First was also consulted.

Document Pack Page 2



April 2015

Document Pack Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 11

COVID 19 – Emergency Powers Group

Meeting Date 23 April 2020 Action Recommend

Item No. Confidential No

Title Community Hubs Update

JET Sponsor Lynne Ridsdale 

Author Lynne Ridsdale 

Executive Summary

A key part of Bury’s Covid 19 emergency response has been the establishment of five 
Community Hubs, to provide the infrastructure to support vulnerable people. The initial 
priority was to support those clinically vulnerable.

This paper sets out proposals to take this agenda forward, building on the success of the 
Community Hubs and the existing Integrated Neighbourhood Teams and Public Service 
Partnership Hubs.  The model will provide greater capacity to respond to the current 
emergency and is designed to be retained through the developing recovery strategy to help 
us move further and faster towards our “Bury 2030” ambition. 

Recommendations

 The Community Hub Teams do not take a role in proactively contacting residents 
identified as vulnerable to Covid 19. Proactive case management will instead continue 
within health and care teams and Housing with referrals to Hubs for support outside of 
service provision as appropriate and referrals will continue to be taken from the 
National Shielding Contact Centre.

 a digital consultation exercise is held to invite wider communities to indicate what 
support they would like from the Hubs and the help and capacity they can bring

 communication continues around the work of the Hubs including encouraging 
residents to self-identify and agree to the Council processing their information in order 
that we may update our records and provide proactive support

 Community Hubs are developed to provide community infrastructure; manage formal 
referrals and develop and direct residents to self-help materials

 A Public Service Partnership hub is established to take a data-led approach to 
management of issues outside the community and health & care remit

 A detailed neighbourhood model of governance is developed

Financial Implications

The proposals contained in the report will use existing resources for which budget provision 
is already available. No additional financial costs are anticipated. 

Legal Implications

Although the Information Commissioner is taking a more pragmatic view of compliance with 
the requirements of the data protection legislation at this time, the Council remains 

Document Pack Page 5



Page 2 of 11

1. Background

A key part of Bury’s Covid 19 emergency response has been the establishment of five 
Community Hubs, to provide the infrastructure to support vulnerable people. The initial 
priority is to support those clinically vulnerable.
The Hubs follow the footprint of the existing health and social care Integrated 
Neighbourhood Teams (INTs), with a remit to identify and join up the clinical support for 
vulnerable people, with wider social support such as from families and neighbours.  The 
initial priority for Community Hubs has been the supply of food and medicines to the most 
vulnerable, this has been achieved by:

 proactively identifying and supporting vulnerable people who do not have a wider 
local family or social network

 identifying and developing local community capacity, through Bury VCFA, the 
network of “good neighbours” and non-constituted community groups

 connecting those deemed to be vulnerable with volunteer capacity to support them
 providing a local distribution network for the foodbanks out of hours

Community Hubs have been operational for three weeks and during this time have made 
good progress in engaging over 500 volunteers across the borough and dealing with over 
800 requests for help. Furthermore, national supply arrangements for food and medicine 
either from Government or NHS England directly or from supermarkets is now improving 
which, in the coming weeks, will release some capacity.
The Community Hubs have been a direct response to the national emergency, but this sort 
of neighbourhood infrastructure was always envisaged as a key component of Bury 2030 
design which proposed three core teams operating within each neighbourhood:

 Health and social care INTs (led by the Local Care Organisation), who have a remit 
for active case management of those individuals at risk of multiple long-term 
conditions, including frailty and/or at risk of a hospital admission. 

 a Community Hub where the community coalesce to support wellbeing in their own 
neighbourhood and take responsibility for social issues

 a Public Service Partnership Hub which takes a data-led approach to identifying and 
managing all-age complex lives. Working across partners such as housing, the police 
and schools this hub seeks to intervene early and target resources in accordance with 
risk.  

The intention of the tripartite model was to reduce demand on public and statutory services 
by creating the infrastructure to join up; embed an asset-based approach for managing 
greatest need / most complex cases together, as well as a place for communities to set their 
own agenda and be empowered to follow their own response. A diagram is attached.

2. Introduction

accountable for the personal information it is processing. This must be balanced with the 
public interest in dealing with Covid 19 and the continuing work of the Hubs. The issues 
around information governance in relation to the personal data of both residents and 
volunteers has been considered and the Council’s Data Protection Officer will continue to 
advise on these issues.

Document Pack Page 6



Page 3 of 11

This paper sets out proposals to take this agenda forward, building on the success of the 
Community Hubs and the existing INT and Public Service Partnership Hubs.  The model will 
provide greater capacity to respond to the current emergency and is designed to be retained 
through the developing recovery strategy to help us move further and faster towards our 
“Bury 2030” ambition. 
The proposals within are made in the context of some important lessons learned over the 
last few weeks including:

 the amount of community capacity that exists and willingness of residents to get 
involved

 increasing demand for low-level mental health support and especially out of office 
hours, eg the Emergency Duty Team contacts increased 40% over the recent Easter 
weekend compared with last year

 strong relationships between community health partners, housing, GMP and DWP
 poor national data and clarity of expectation. 

3. Community Hubs progress to date

3.1 Data and analysis of community support & capacity
A data set of c4800 people who are potentially extremely vulnerable to Covid 19 in Bury has 
been developed.  The information has been gathered from records produced by Government 
and those held in general practice.  The original intention was for Community Hub teams to 
contact each individual on this list to determine the extent of their vulnerability and needs for 
help. 
A mass ring round by the Local Authority has now proven impracticable, however, on the 
basis that:

 Data sets are continually changing nationally
 The data is known not to be 100% reliable, not least because of the age of some 

information which is back dated by up to 15 years
 Multiple contacts have already begun across public service and feedback is coming 

through that the public are unhappy about multiple approaches
 Information governance work would be significant to securely process this volume of 

information.

It is instead proposed that community support requirements are identified by:

 cross-checking vulnerability data received from government with local health and 
care service user records, by the Performance Team.  This exercise will ensure that 
relevant agencies, in particular the INTs, are sighted on their vulnerable service 
users in the context of COVID 19

 receiving requests for help direct from the Community Hubs
 conducting a community-wide digital consultation exercise, via the One Community 

Portal, which will ask about the support required generally by the community in the 
context of Covid 19 and the capacity that the community may be able to offer.  This 
information will inform the pandemic response, and provide valuable knowledge to  
the evolving role and capacity of hubs as part of the Bury 2030 strategy

 continuing to publicise the work of the Hubs and, as part of this, to encourage 
residents to self-identify and agree to the Council/CCG processing their information 
in order that we may update our records and provide proactive support

In the meantime, Bury has led the design of an online application (app) to capture and direct 

Document Pack Page 7



Page 4 of 11

community capacity asks and offers. The app is now being funded and managed by the 
GMCA as a tool for all districts.  The app will be live by the end of April and will provide 
management information on all Hub activity via a live dashboard, including:

 volunteer numbers and groups by Hub area
 numbers of contacts for help and the nature of request by category
 outcomes and general feedback

3.2 Volunteer Capacity
The Community Hubs have identified and are proactively tasking a network of over 500 
active volunteers.  Volunteers are drawn from:

 around 500 people drawn from individual member organisations of the VCFA and 
other national community organisations such as Girlguiding.

 c150 RammyMen Volunteers – the largest single locality based voluntary organisation
 many more resident-led and non-constituted groups which are currently being 

defined, through the “Kind Bury” movement and some supported by Collaborate 
Outloud.

Volunteers who have registered with the Hubs have been provided with a formal letter and 
registration number which confirms their role and operate within a defined set of principles.  
Consideration is being given to additional “branding” eg t-shirts for people who are working 
in the community. Thanks to our volunteers are being expressed regularly through weekly 
social media messaging and direct emails. 
Volunteers are currently typically tasked with shopping and medicine delivery; the capacity 
from supermarkets referred to in this paper means that there is also now volunteer resource 
available for:

 distribution/packing activity on behalf of foodbanks or
 telephone-based community support for individuals in the form of comfort calls

3.3 Food and Medicine Provision
A major function of Community Hubs to date has been the supply of food.  Hubs arrange 
shopping on behalf of shielded people and have been connecting with foodbanks and the 
Council’s welfare team to meet hardship needs.
The role of Hubs in supplying food should reduce going forward on the basis that:

 supermarkets are beginning to organise to take orders and payment directly from 
households 

 a “lead” foodbank is being identified in each neighbourhood, described below, to 
which food hardship requests will be directed, subject to a triage by the Hub based on 
the normal Council welfare criteria. People who seek foodbank support will also be 
referred to the Council’s Benefits team for sustainable financial advice. 

 Porchbox is being supported by the Council to assume a distribution role for all 
Foodbanks and charities providing hot food and other supplies, eg nappies. In 
anticipation of greater hardship needs the Council has made a total contribution of 
£20,000 to foodbank supplies and has facilitated the same through Porchbox from 
Greater Manchester. 

Document Pack Page 8



Page 5 of 11

Porch
Boxes

Bury East 
TBC

Attic project
New Springs CC
Chesham Fold 

TRA
Topping TRA

Prestwich
TBC

Le Chiam 
Gift

Whitefield
TRUST HOUSE

Hillock and 
Oakgate CA
Ribble Drive 

Childrens Centre

Radcliffe
ROC

North
BRANDLESON 

CC

Medicine supply has been addressed locally by the Hubs who have liaised with the Greater 
Manchester Local Pharmaceutical Committee to confirm that:

 any volunteer with a Bury Council Volunteering Letter and details of the relevant 
patient will be permitted to collect medicine on the patient’s behalf

 council staff will manage deliveries of controlled substances and GM Mental Health 
Trust staff will take responsibility for delivering Opiate Substitution Treatments

NHS England has also now placed an obligation on pharmacy contractors to make sure that 
a home delivery or volunteer collection option is available to people in the shielded group./ 
Many pharmacies are also prioritising deliveries to other vulnerable patients, for example the 
over 70s.

4. Future Neighbourhood Model

This section describes the proposed components of a tripartite team in each of our five 
neighbourhood areas, comprising:

 a Community Hub
 a Partnership Hub and 
 the remit of existing health and care Integrated Neighbourhood teams.

A recommendation is also made for how the three teams will come together to proactively 
manage place-based issues together and comments on the sustainability of current resource 
models.

4.1Community Hubs

On the basis that critical supply chains have now been determined there is an opportunity to 
develop the role and functions of Community Hubs. It is proposed that, as well as continuing 
to co-ordinate requests for practical help, the Community Hubs expand to offer low-level 
social and emotional support not only to vulnerable people but to the whole community. The 
Community Hub offer would be available to anyone with the capacity to seek help 
themselves and will complement the social prescribing model which, whilst in its infancy, will 
continue to be managed by the VCFA that have established links with the INTs and Primary 
Care Networks for people with a diagnosed need for support. 
The Community Hub infrastructure is made up entirely of organised voluntary groups 

Document Pack Page 9



Page 6 of 11

through the VCFA; the “Kind Bury” network of good neighbours and non-constituted groups 
and the network of Six Town Housing Tenant Management Organisations. The amazing 
response of these groups to the current emergency reflects the Bury 2030 hypothesis that 
relationships are more important in people’s lives than public services and provides 
confidence to extend the remit of community support.  Facilitation of wider wellbeing will 
meet a need which is becoming apparent from Community Hub referrals and GP feedback, 
that despite a rise in mental health issues there are limited options on offer for people who 
need support but do not meet the threshold for clinical care and local groups are largely 
already at capacity.
In meeting this ambition, capacity within the current Community Hub infrastructure would 
therefore be re-directed to:

 facilitate resident “asks and offers” of help within local resources. Hubs will:
o encourage, communicate and direct people to local community activity or 

befriending support which helps people to connect, develop relationships and 
facilitate wellbeing.  This will include the work of organised VCFA groups; 
maintaining an active network of “good neighbours” and engaging residents 
with council services/activities eg Libraries and the Adult Learning Service

o be a key liaison point between local groups and ward councillors
o Record and report on local issues through the activity data recorded by the app 

and outcomes data shared by public services 
o Support local groups to deliver their work, for example by providing technology 

and communications advice and facilitating applications for any funding 
opportunities in conjunction with the VCFA

 develop and direct residents to the repository of self-help materials designed to 
connect and inspire them, In particular:

o the Bury Directory of local and national resources
o signposting to the wealth of local cultural resources, especially in the context of 

our status as GM Town of Culture, to help create “happiness” through 
connections and engagement, particularly during a period of isolation. Cultural 
resources include live streamed performance; digital exhibitions and on-line 
tuition 

 providing direct, low-level support for the community and individuals, including:
o practical help eg hardship support, shopping or medicine deliveries
o working with Partnership Teams (described below) to lead responses to 

community-wide issues eg smoking cessation; physical activity; anti-social 
behaviour; weight management and cleanliness.  The Hubs will be supported 
to both pursue their own agenda and engage in wider public service strategies

o providing telephone-based social and emotional support during the current 
period of lockdown, in the form of comfort calls. Detailed operating procedures 
will be developed for these calls which will aim to provide social contact and an 
opportunity for both vulnerable people and their carers to express their feelings 
or seek help. Telephone-based support will be provided over a 7-day week 
during the emergency with a view to maintaining this in recovery, over an 
extended working day as far as possible. 

Comfort calls will be made by Council staff and volunteers using a basic 
conversation framework, designed simply to facilitate social interaction through 
a “friendly ear”. Volunteers will be trained in effective listening techniques and 
will have the resources to refer people who need support to self-help advice; to 
community groups or specialist services as described below. Volunteers will 
focus on befriending and not have or be expected to provide any advice on 
mental health or other specialist care. 

Document Pack Page 10



Page 7 of 11

Any issues received by the Community Hubs which receive a higher level of support will be 
referred back into the appropriate team, including:

 Ward Councillor casework
 more complex social prescribing requests will be referred to the INT or Staying 

Well teams
 referring hardship issues to the foodbanks and/or council’s welfare team
 directing healthcare referrals back to the most appropriate source of support such 

as the patient’s GP or INT a determined pathway, for those who require clinical 
support

 safeguarding and other statutory type referrals eg mental health assessment into 
the MASH

During the emergency Community Hub functions will be delivered by the temporary team of 
Council staff, with the intention of building a momentum and delivery tools that can be taken 
forward beyond the emergency by communities themselves as part of the “business as 
usual” of the future.  In future, the intention is that Community Hubs will:

 be led entirely by the Community with the support of a Council–hosted Community 
Connector, whose role will be to continue to facilitate, develop and record community 
capacity infrastructure and ensure join up between the “level 0” social prescribing 
support in the Hubs with higher levels of support facilitated by the INTs

 draw on the full network of community resources with leadership from the VCFA, but 
may also seek to identify a small number of “anchor” voluntary sector groups who are 
the most active in their locality and can provide wider direction to other groups and 
volunteers.

4.2Public Service Neighbourhood Partnership Hubs

The “Team Bury” network is operating at Gold and Silver command level during the 
emergency to direct the borough-wide policy response. It is proposed that this network is 
expanded to work at a neighbourhood level in conjunction with INTs and Community Hubs 
and retained in recovery as the planned third component of our neighbourhood model.  The 
Partnership Hubs will identify and apply common risk-stratification to complex casework, 
outside of health and social care issues which are case-managed by the INTs.  The 
Partnership Hubs will agree and actively case manage common case priorities on the basis 
of shared information, to target resources at those cases where early intervention is likely to 
reduce subsequent public service demand. 

The Partnership Hub will be chaired by a Co-Ordinator which will be hosted by the Council 
and will include, for each neighbourhood, representation from:

 Early Help, including an open invitation for relevant schools leaders 
 local authority place-based services including streetscene; Youth services and 

enforcement (environmental health and licensing)
 GM Fire and Rescue
 GM Police
 Housing, with representation initially from Six Town Housing on behalf of all providers 

within the Borough
 Probation
 DWP

Document Pack Page 11



Page 8 of 11

In the current context the immediate remit of this group is likely to include:

 oversight of vulnerable children not currently in school
 direction of social distancing enforcement action by GMP and Local Authority 
 anti-social behaviour including fly tipping and street cleanliness
 domestic abuse
 hardship, including the increasing volume of benefits claims and Council welfare 

demand

Longer term the remit, according to local profiles, is likely to extend into such issues as 
youth offending, children’s early help, alcohol and drug dependency, anti-social behaviour 
and enforcement and exploitation.

4.3Health and Care Integrated neighbourhood teams

INTs are the third component of the overarching neighbourhood model. They currently 
consist of co-located district nursing and social care staff working under single line 
management, with formal links to the VCFA for social prescribing support. Working under 
one team has allowed for the sharing of information around the more vulnerable members of 
our population and the ability to share information without the need for formal referrals. 

INT leads, working with a GP lead, have been developing links between all health and social 
care providers within their neighbourhood along with those that work on a borough/wider 
footprint- such as acute providers. Through their links with the Staying Well team and the 
social prescribing service they have started to work more closely with local community 
groups.

A key component of the work of INTs is the active case management (ACM) process. Multi-
disciplinary teams meet weekly in each neighbourhood and provide personalised support to 
people at risk of multiple long-term conditions and/or admissions. Individuals are identified 
via risk stratification and referral by any of the neighbourhood partners. Holistic care plans 
are developed based on the individual’s personal goal, linking in the support provided by 
those in the neighbourhood. In two of the five areas input into these plans expands beyond 
those areas traditionally associated with health and social care and includes links into 
housing, police etc.

During the current pandemic new referrals into ACM have been suspended but the INTs are 
linking closely with the new hubs to ensure people on their case load receive additional 
support during this period. The work undertaken by the hubs is likely to have rapidly 
identified a cohort of people unknown to the INTs but would benefit from the support 
provided via the ACM process. The pandemic has also allowed the sharing of data between 
services to a degree previously restricted by patient care.

Plans to integrate mental health services into the INTs are still under development and 
during the Covid-19 emergency it has been identified as a gap to address. INTs also mainly 
focus on the health and social care needs of adults and links into children health services 
and child social care via the Public Service Partnership Hubs needs to be developed.

4.4`Neighbourhood-wide focus

The three teams on each neighbourhood footprint are by design partnerships in their own 
right but will focus on the active case management of individuals and, not least to follow 
information governance requirements, will work within separate areas of focus. To avoid silo 

Document Pack Page 12



Page 9 of 11

working and ensure an ongoing focus on population-wide health it is proposed that 
representatives from the three teams meet together at least quarterly, with further 
representation from NWAS; local businesses; Community Pharmacy and General Practice 
to:

 Understand strategic issues across a whole place and develop proactive a response 
which addresses all the determinants of good health

 Address population-wide health issues and outcomes
 build relationships, to ensure that case advice and support can be accessed quickly 

based on relationships as well as the formal referral process
 ensure there is not duplication or gaps between teams.

In support of this process The Council will host five Neighbourhood Co-ordinators who 
will:

 chair their Partnership Hub 
 manage the Community Hub Community Connector
 ensure the work of respective neighbourhood teams is joined up and mutually 

assuring
 capture and communicate community successes in their neighbourhood
 be accountable for reporting improvements in outcomes and reduction in public 

service demand within their neighbourhood to the various partnership groups 

4.5Sustainability

The delivery model proposed within this framework is designed for immediate 
implementation and to be retained in the medium term.  This infrastructure will enable both 
the emergency response and recovery activity, in accordance with our reform ambition. 

The current wealth of community volunteers and redeployed public service will provide 
immediate resources to deliver this model but cannot be relied upon as a basis for longer 
term plans. The expectation is, however, that:

 community capacity can be maintained at a sufficient volume to continue with 
Community Hubs. Community Hub Leads will engage and develop their volunteer 
team such that people choose to remain engaged after the emergency.  Engagement 
will be achieved through regular communication; digital team building in the short 
term and, when appropriate, team meetings and celebration events in order that 
volunteers benefit personally from the social aspects of their work 

 A small number of Council-hosted staff may be retained to lead both the Community 
and Public Service Partnership Hubs, from within current staffing establishment (the 
current proposal is to identify five Neighbourhood Co-Ordinators and five Community 
Connectors; these staff may not all be Council employees but the proposal is that 
they are hosted by one organisation for consistency and accountability)

 Efficiencies from the new ways of working that have evolved during the emergency 
response, particularly digital delivery, will continue to release sufficient capacity for all 
partners to contribute to neighbourhood hub teams.

5 Governance

Document Pack Page 13



Page 10 of 11

It is proposed that existing governance is used to oversee neighbourhood delivery as far as 
possible, as described below:

 Accountability for operational performance will remain within individual organisations 
and the statutory partnerships will continue to manage system-wide performance for 
their cohort, eg the Children’s Board and Community Safety partnership

 Neighbourhood-level outcomes will, however, also be reported into the Borough 
Public Service reform Board, to which the Neighbourhood Co-Ordinators will also be 
invited. The PSR Board is a forum for transformation which is attended by system 
leaders from the LCO, Council, VCFA, GMP and housing. The Board will become a 
“check and challenge” forum, informed by analysis of outcomes data, where the 
effectiveness of the neighbourhood model will be monitored; best practice exchanged 
and ongoing development strategies agreed

 The Chair of the PSR Board will provide a standing update on neighbourhood delivery 
to the Strategic Commissioning Board, where place-based strategy and outcomes 
across all the determinants of health are led.

6 Next Steps & delivery plan

Work is required at pace to deliver the expanded model as part of the emergency response. 
If approved, key actions will be required as follows:

By the end of April:

 Community Hubs embedded to have a clear network of community capacity and 
Standard Operating Procedures including a model for “Comfort calls” 

 The Community Hub offer will be re-published through a leaflet which will reflect on 
progress so far; promote the wider offer and ask communities to tell us what else they 
are doing. Communications will be particularly targeted at carers for vulnerable 
people to ensure they understand the support offer for their own back-up and support

 A digital survey will be conducted to revisit the Bury 2030 questions about the type of 
community support that is sought and to further capture offers of capacity

 the Public Service Partnership Hub membership will be mapped

By mid-May

 The Community Hub dashboard will be available and real-time management 
information released

 A partnership risk stratification model will be agreed, to guide the work of the 
Partnership Hubs

 the Public Services Partnership Hubs will be operational with a clear work plan and 
Standard Operating Procedures including data governance

By the end of June, assuming we are in or approaching a planned period of recovery

 the network of volunteers will be formally thanked and recognised for their response 
to the Coronavirus emergency and long-term capacity will be confirmed

 evaluation of the lessons learned from the emergency will be underway, to inform the 
longer term neighbourhood model

Document Pack Page 14



Page 11 of 11

 Community and Public Services Partnership Hubs will have evolved to a “business 
as usual” model and will dealing with all community casework, not just Covid-related 
work. In accordance with our public service reform principles this means there will be 
a model for information sharing which will be driving a common risk stratification 
approach and the targeted of local resources to inform early intervention and 
reduced public service demand

 Neighbourhood level governance in place?

7 Recommendations
In line with the analysis in this paper it is recommended that:

 the Community Hub Teams do not take a role in proactively contacting residents 
identified as vulnerable to Covid 19. Proactive case management will instead 
continue within health and care teams and Housing with referrals to Hubs for support 
outside of service provision as appropriate and referrals will continue to be taken from 
the National Shielding Contact Centre.

 a digital consultation exercise is held to invite wider communities to indicate what 
support they would like from the Hubs and the help and capacity they can bring

 communication continues around the work of the Hubs including encouraging 
residents to self-identify and agree to the Council processing their information in order 
that we may update our records and provide proactive support

 Community Hubs are developed to provide community infrastructure; manage formal 
referrals and develop and direct residents to self-help materials

 A Public Service Partnership hub is established to take a data-led approach to 
management of issues outside the community and health & care remit

 A detailed neighbourhood model of governance is developed

Document Pack Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



April 2015

TO BE UPLOADED ON TO THE INTERNET BY DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

Date: Ref No:

Type of Decision:

Cabinet Decision x Council Decision

Key x Non-Key

Subject matter:
Strategic Investment

Reason for Urgency:
There is an urgent requirement for the Council to consider support to a key asset in 
Greater Manchester as a result of the global pandemic COVID-19.   

The asset is of strategic economic and financial importance to Bury, GM and the North 
West and provides a significant number of jobs to local residents. The legal or financial 
position of the Council or the interests of the Council and/or the residents of Bury would 
be prejudiced if the matter is not determined before the next scheduled Council meeting 
where it could be considered. 

Freedom of Information Status  NOT FOR PUBLICATION
In accordance with paragraph 12 of Part 4, Access to Information Procedure Rules of the 
Council’s Constitution, this paper is exempt as it contains information relating to the 
financial and business affairs of the Council and other parties and the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

Equality Impact Assessment 

[Does this decision change policy, 
procedure or working practice or 
negatively impact on a group of people?  
If yes – complete EIA and summarise 
issues identified and recommendations – 
forward EIA to Corporate HR]

No

URGENT DECISION FORM

Document Pack Page 17



April 2015

Decision taken:

Approval of support for a key asset and other recommendations contained in the report of 
the Joint Chief Finance Officer.

Delegation of authority to the Chief Executive, Council Solicitor and Joint Chief Finance 
Officer to carry out the necessary actions and activities to give effect to this decision. 

The Reasons are:

There is an urgent requirement for the Council to consider the provision of support to a 
key asset in Greater Manchester as a result of the global pandemic COVID-19.   The asset 
is of strategic economic and financial importance to Bury, GM and the North West and 
provides a significant number of jobs to local residents. The legal or financial position of 
the Council or the interests of the Council and/or the residents of Bury would be 
prejudiced if the matter is not determined before the next scheduled Council meeting 
where it could be considered. 

Decision taken by: Signature: Date:

Chief/Senior Officer/Cabinet Chair 23.4.2020

After consultation with:

Cabinet  Member (if a Key Decision) or 
Chair or Lead Member (as appropriate)

23.4.2020

If it is a Key Decision, the Chair of 
Scrutiny Committee to agree that the 
decision cannot be deferred

Councillor R Caserta 
Consulted

23.4.2020

Opposition Leader or nominated 
spokesperson (Council Decision) or

Leader or Majority Group Member on 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (if a 
Key Decision)  to agree that the decision 
cannot be deferred

Councillor N Jones Consulted 23.4.2020

Document Pack Page 18



April 2015

Leader of second largest Opposition 
Group (if a Key/Council Decision) to 
agree that the decision cannot be 
deferred

Councillor t Pickstone 
consulted 

23.4.2020

Document Pack Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



April 2015

TO BE UPLOADED ON TO THE INTERNET BY DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

Date: 23.4.2020 Ref No:

Type of Decision:

Cabinet Decision Council Decision

Key Non-Key X

Subject matter:

Muslim Burials

Reason for Urgency:

The need to review the provision as a matter of urgency has arisen following the 
Covid 19 Pandemic

Freedom of Information Status   In public domain

Equality Impact Assessment 

[Does this decision change policy, 
procedure or working practice or 
negatively impact on a group of 
people?  If yes – complete EIA and 
summarise issues identified and 
recommendations – forward EIA to 
Corporate HR]

Decision taken:

1. Where there is more than one funeral for a registered Bury resident in the same household 
within the course of 3 months we will reduce burial costs by 25% for the 2nd one, for a 
period of 6 months.  Although this will rarely apply, it would impact on income by 
approximately £500 for each relevant funeral.

2. The vault cost cannot be reduced as they are charged at cost, the vault is a preference not 
a religious requirement and therefore a discount on this element should not be applied.

Decision taken by: Signature: Date:

URGENT DECISION FORM

Document Pack Page 21



April 2015

Chief/Senior Officer/Cabinet Chair 23.4.2020

After consultation with:

Cabinet  Member (if a Key Decision) or 
Chair or Lead Member (as appropriate)

Councillor Quinn 23.4.2020

If it is a Key Decision, the Chair of 
Scrutiny Committee to agree that the 
decision cannot be deferred

Not required

Opposition Leader or nominated 
spokesperson (Council Decision) or

Leader or Majority Group Member on 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (if a 
Key Decision)  to agree that the decision 
cannot be deferred

Not required

Leader of second largest Opposition 
Group (if a Key/Council Decision) to 
agree that the decision cannot be 
deferred

Not required

Please note this item was considered at a meeting of the COVID19 EPG on 23.4.2020

Document Pack Page 22



TO BE UPLOADED ON TO THE INTERNET BY DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

Date: 20th April 2020 Ref No:

Type of Decision:

Cabinet Decision Council Decision x

Key Non-Key

Subject matter:

1. Payment Arrangements for agency/casual/supply staff during the Coronavirus crisis 
who cannot work due to reasons related to the crisis

2. Furlough Arrangements for staff employed by education services/schools with 
income arrangements, where income arrangements fall short of salary costs due to 
the crisis (for example before/after school clubs, adult learning tutors).

Reason for Urgency:  

1. To agree pay arrangements for staff affected in order to provide reassurance and 
ensure no periods of nil pay where appropriate to pay

2. To agree to schools/other education services being able to use the Furlough 
scheme in situations where the salary costs for staff employed by the 
school/service cannot be met due to a shortfall in income due to the crisis

Equality Impact Assessment 

[Does this decision change policy, 
procedure or working practice or 
negatively impact on a group of 
people?  If yes – complete EIA and 
summarise issues identified and 
recommendations – forward EIA to 
Corporate HR]

This decision will have a positive impact for 
all staff affected 

URGENT DECISION FORM

Document Pack Page 23 Agenda Item 2



Decision taken: 

1. Payment arrangements to be as follows:
 Agency Workers through the REED contract where; the role is no longer 

required due to the closure of the workplace,  there is a change in demand 
due to Covid-19, the worker is self-isolating or the worker is vulnerable and 
unable to work - to be paid 80% of pay to the end of their current 
assignment

 Agency Workers through any other contract – to be paid in accordance with 
the REED arrangements – 80% of pay

 Casual Workers employed by the Council through ACES, CYP Supply, Supply 
Teachers Register - Regular casual workers should continue to be paid; 
Regular workers will be those who have worked over the last 12 weeks 
(January to March 2020), have been paid 2 out of the 3 months, and are still 
available to work; Payment will be their usual pay or an average over the 12 
weeks if hours of work fluctuate. 

2. Furlough Arrangements for staff employed by schools in Before/After 
School Clubs:
If education services/schools employ staff and rely on income to cover staff costs 
and due to Covid-19 the income does not cover these costs then the 
service/schools may Furlough staff affected providing they can demonstrate that 
the private income they receive is not sufficient to cover the staff costs (eg before 
and after schools clubs and adult learning).

Signature: Date:

Chief/Senior Officer/Cabinet Chair 22.4.2020

After consultation with:

Cabinet  Member (if a Key Decision) or 
Chair or Lead Member (as appropriate)

22.4.2020

If it is a Key Decision, the Chair of 
Scrutiny Committee to agree that the 
decision cannot be deferred

Not required

Opposition Leader or nominated 
spokesperson (Council Decision) or

Leader or Majority Group Member on 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (if a 
Key Decision)  to agree that the decision 
cannot be deferred

Councillor N Jones Consulted 23.4.2020

Leader of second largest Opposition 
Group (if a Key/Council Decision) to 
agree that the decision cannot be 
deferred

Councillor T Pickstone 
Consulted

23.4.2020

Document Pack Page 24



NB although not a requirement of the constitution Councillor James Mason, Leader of Radcliffe 
First was also consulted.

1.0 Background

Payment arrangements:

 The Council employs Agency Workers through REED, who were procured through 
the Greater Manchester collaboration contract arrangements.

 The Council also has its own arrangements in place for casual/supply staff 
through Bury ACES, CYP Supply and Supply Teachers Registers. These staff are 
employed by the Council, albeit on zero hour’s contracts, and are our 
employees. Many have worked continuously for long periods of time and will 
have employment rights. Some will have been linked to a particular 
service/school, others may work across services/at different schools.

 Arrangements need to be agreed and put in place to ensure these agency 
workers and casual/supply staff working regularly receive appropriate payments 
if unable to work due to the COVID-19 crisis due to a number of different 
reasons including:

 the role being no longer required
 the closure of the workplace and the inability for the worker to work from 

home
 a change in demand
 the worker is required to self-isolate and is unable to work from home
 the worker is vulnerable and is unable to work from home

 This will ensure they are not disadvantaged in that their otherwise regular 
income stops, having a concerning effect on people’s lives at this already very 
difficult time.

 These arrangements would not apply to agency workers or casual/supply staff 
whose assignments end for another reason; or adhoc casual/supply staff that 
have not worked regularly.

Furlough arrangements:

 The Government’s Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) is designed to 
support employers whose operations have been severely affected by Covid-19 
by providing them with a grant to help them to continue paying part of their 
employees’ wages who would otherwise have been laid off during this outbreak. 
The scheme will ensure furloughed staff receive up to 80% of their usual 
monthly wage costs, up to £2,500 a month, plus the associated Employer 
National Insurance contribution and minimum automatic enrolment employer 
pension contribution on that wage.

 The scheme is available to all UK employers, including charities, which had 
created and started a PAYE payroll scheme by 28 February 2020 although the 
government expects that the scheme will not be used by many public sector 
organisations, as most public sector employees are continuing to provide 
essential public services or contribute to the response to the covid-19 outbreak.

 Where employers receive public funding for staff costs, and that funding is 
continuing, employers are expected to use that money to continue to pay staff in 
the usual fashion – and correspondingly not furlough them. 

Document Pack Page 25



 The Government have issued new guidance around financial support for 
education, early years and children’s social care including a provision for 
some education services/schools to use the Furlough scheme where:

o Staff are employed by the school/council
o The school/service relies on private income (eg from parents/learners) to 

cover staff costs
o Due to the COVID-19 crisis income does not cover staff costs
o The school/service is able to demonstrate the shortfall in income against 

staff costs

2.0 Proposed Actions

 Agency Workers on assignments through REED who, as a result of the Covid-19 
crisis, have been unable to complete those assignments be paid in accordance 
with the arrangements agreed with REED through the GM Contract - if there is 
no other available work then workers will be paid 80% of their usual pay to the 
end of their current assignment.

 Agency Workers obtained through any other contract (including those contracts 
with agencies entered into directly by schools) to be paid in accordance with the 
REED arrangements – 80% of pay. Council/School contact to liaise with the 
agency.

 The payment at the rate of 80% of usual pay is the rate recommended by the 
Government Cabinet Office.

 Casual Workers employed by the Council through ACES, CYP Supply, Supply 
Teachers Register who work regularly should continue to be paid - Regular 
workers will be those who have worked over the last 12 weeks (January to 
March 2020), have been paid 2 out of the 3 months, and are still available to 
work. Payment will be their usual pay or an average over the 12 weeks if hours 
of work fluctuate. 

 Should education services/schools employ staff (for example in before/after 
school clubs, adult tutors) and they are unable to cover staff costs due to a 
reduction in private income the service/school can apply to the CJRS to 
furlough any affected staff. Salary payments would continue, however, the 
service/school would claim back upto 80% of the staff costs.

3.0 Alternative Options

3.1 The alternative option would be not to pay casual/supply staff. This would most likely 
lead to grievances being raised as staff would be disadvantaged and this could lead to 
financial hardship. 

3.2 To advise relevant services/schools not to use the CJRS where listed above and absorb 
the additional costs.

 

4.0 Financial implications

4.1 The approximate costs over 3 months of making payments to supply/casual staff that 
usually work, are unable to work and are arranged through our corporate casual/supply 
arrangements is £235,079:

 CYP Supply:
o Teachers/Teaching Assistants/Mid-day Supervisors/Admin 

31 staff – £57037
 Council wide supply through Bury ACES:

Document Pack Page 26



o leisure – 45 staff – £156,520
o catering assistants – 20 staff – £4324
o other Bury ACES - 32 staff - £17198

4.2 For schools/services that decide to use the Furlough scheme for before/after school 
clubs the financial risk will sit with them in that any salaries of staff furloughed will be 
charged to the schools budgets and schools will be able to claim the cost of this back 
following the Government funding support for schools route and criteria. 

5.0 Legal implications

5.1 Agency Workers Regulations require fair treatment.

5.2 Casual/Supply staff are classed as being employed by the Council and therefore should 
not be treated differently to permanent/temporary staff.

5.3 Once agreed, these arrangements will be discussed with the Branch Secretary of 
UNISON/Trades Union Convenor.

6.0 Associated Risks

6.1 As at 3.1, 3.2, section 4 and section 5.

7.0 Conclusion

7.1 These are exceptional times and a decision on the above is required as soon as 
possible. 

Report Author: Caroline Schofield 
Job Title: Strategic Lead - HR
Date: 20th April 2020

Document Pack Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



1

COVID 19 – EMERGENCY POWERS GROUP

In attendance: Councillor D Jones (in the Chair)
Councillor P Cropper
Councillor T Pickstone
Councillor J Mason
Councillor R Caserta
Councillor A Simpson
Councillor T Tariq
Dr J Schryer (CCG representative)

Officers: G Little – Chief Executive 
L Ridsdale    - Deputy Chief Executive
J Witkowski – Head of Legal Services 
D Ball -    Director of Operations
P Lakin - Director of Economic Regeneration
J Gallagher – Democratic Services Manager

Apologies for Councillor N Jones
Absence

 

1. UPDATE ON PROGRESS OF THE EMERGENCY 

Geoff Little provided an overview of work being undertaken across the Council and 
Health and social care sectors to address the Covid 19 emergency.  The update 
including information in relation to the following areas:

Three high areas of risk: Adult social care, PPE and Testing.
Adult Social Care – continues to be higher acuity of patients in primary care, ech 
care home has been allocated a named GP.
PPE – 53,000 items in stock, daily surveys undertaken to accurately assess stock 
levels.  The Borough has benefited from work undertaken by the Greater 
Manchester Resilience Forum, the Forum has been very efficient in getting supplies 
to all areas. 
Testing – there remains sufficient testing capacity for all front line staff.  Further 
updated information will be shared with Managers and Staff in relation to 
availability of testing facilities – uptake will be monitored.  

Support to Business – National data has predicated a real terms fall of up to 35% 
in GDP.  £22m pounds worth of grants have been distributed to businesses in the 
Borough – Bury leadership group to target those business that as of yet applied for 
a grant.

Waste recycling centre – Meeting of GM Leaders agree to a partial re-opening of 
the waste recycling centres will looking at how this is to be managed, potential 
date for re-opening is 2nd May 2020.

Future items for consideration by the EPG:
Mental health Update
Recovery plan

Document Pack Page 29 Agenda Item 3



2

Equalities Impact 

Questions/Comments

Responding to a member’s question the Chief Executive reported that all patients 
are now tested before discharge, there is also a longer period of assessment 
following the test before the patient returns to the Care Home.  To assist in 
preventing transmission, the infection control team have provided additional 
support to Care Homes. OCO commissioning staff are in daily contact with care 
home staff and additional support is provided by staff in primary care.
Councillor Simpson reported that the Council will look at appointing Care Home 
infection control champions.

Responding to a Member’s question with regards to capacity, the Chief Executive 
reported that there is Critical Care capacity in FGH and across GM, there is also 
capacity at the step down service provided at the Nightingale unit.
Despite available capacity as the number of Covidm19 cases is expected not to 
peak but instead to follow a longer and flatter trajectory and therefore would not 
look to reduce capacity in residential homes or hospitals.

Action: GL to provide information in respect of residential/care home 
capacity levels

Responding to a Member’s question, the Chief Executive reported that need to 
ensure the message about availability of testing is communicated more widely.  

        It was agreed:

        The verbal update be noted.
    

2. COMMUNITY HUBS UPDATE

Lynne Ridsdale, Deputy Chief Executive provided Members with an update with 
regards to the Community Hubs.  

A key part of Bury’s Covid 19 emergency response has been the establishment of 
five Community Hubs, to provide the infrastructure to support vulnerable people. 
The initial priority was to support those clinically vulnerable.

This paper sets out proposals to take this agenda forward, building on the success 
of the Community Hubs and the existing Integrated Neighbourhood Teams and 
Public Service Partnership Hubs.  The model will provide greater capacity to 
respond to the current emergency and is designed to be retained through the 
developing recovery strategy to help us move further and faster towards our “Bury 
2030” ambition.

Questions/comments

Responding to a Member’s question the Deputy Chief Executive reported that the 
number of volunteers had increased from 100 to 500, and have been triage for 
those that hold DBS licenses.
With regards to health and social care records, information governance and the 
handling of personal data will be included in the Community HUB governance 
arrangements.  

Document Pack Page 30



3

        
It was agreed:

 The Community Hub Teams do not take a role in proactively contacting residents 
identified as vulnerable to Covid 19. Proactive case management will instead 
continue within health and care teams and Housing with referrals to Hubs for 
support outside of service provision as appropriate and referrals will continue to 
be taken from the National Shielding Contact Centre.

 a digital consultation exercise is held to invite wider communities to indicate what 
support they would like from the Hubs and the help and capacity they can bring

 communication continues around the work of the Hubs including encouraging 
residents to self-identify and agree to the Council processing their information in 
order that we may update our records and provide proactive support

 Community Hubs are developed to provide community infrastructure; manage 
formal referrals and develop and direct residents to self-help materials

 A Public Service Partnership hub is established to take a data-led approach to 
management of issues outside the community and health & care remit

 A detailed neighbourhood model of governance is developed

3. SUPPORT FOR TOWN CENTRES

Paul Lakin provided an overview of proposals to support for the Boroughs town 
centres I response to the COVID 19 pandemic.  

Future of Town centres- a number of challenges

 The shift towards online retail will have picked-up pace during the lockdown.  We 
have seen a spate of physical retailers go into administration during the lockdown 
and more are likely to seek protection from creditors in the next few months.  Of 
all our town centres it is Bury which has a large physical retail footprint and is 
therefore at most threat from seeing units close and the void rate increase.

 The corporate leisure sector is facing particular challenges associated with 
shutdown.  This will likely lead to a reduction in demand for space from F&B (food 
and beverage) chains. The existing occupiers in the Borough such as Frankie and 
Bennies and Pizza Express are facing severe trading challenges. Where there are 
existing vacant units, such as in the leisure element of the Rock scheme, units 
may prove difficult to let and could stand empty for a prolonged period.

 Prestwich, Ramsbottom, Whitefield and central Bury have a large number of 
independent restaurants, cafes and bars.  The ability of these businesses to 
survive will be dependent upon their ability to meet costs during the shutdown 
and the willingness of their landlords to forego rent payments and the banks 
being pragmatic where they hold outstanding debt Critical to the survival of these 
businesses will be the willingness of customers to return quickly and in volumes 
once the lockdown is over.  This could be hampered by a wider economic 
downturn with consumers generally tightening their belts.

Creation of Town Centre Economic Recovery and Growth Stakeholder Boards
Integration of Town Centres Recovery Work

Questions 

Document Pack Page 31



4

Members discussed the future of the Longfield site and Prestwich regeneration.  
Responding the Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing reported that he would 
envisage the Council would take a bigger role (in partnership with other 
stakeholders) driven by public funding to drive forward a new vision for Prestwich.

Responding to a question in relation to MPs involvement in the Economic Recovery 
and Growth Stakeholder Boards, the Director of Economic regeneration reported 
that the membership is currently being reviewed.

It was agreed:

The report be noted. 

4. MUSLIM BURIALS

In the absence of the Director of Operations, the Deputy Chief Executive provided 
an update in respect of muslim burials.

The total cost of ANY burial in Bury is £2069 which includes £1085 for the plot, 
£106 for the rights of burial, £777 for the interment (weekdays) and £101 for the 
marker stone. This charge is the same for all faiths.

It was agreed:

1. Where there is more than one funeral for a registered Bury resident in the same 
household within the course of 3 months we will reduce burial costs by 25% for the 
2nd one, for a six month period.  Although this will rarely apply, it would impact on 
income by approximately £500 for each relevant funeral.  
2. The vault cost cannot be reduced as they are charged at cost, the vault is a 
preference not a religious requirement and therefore a discount on this element 
should not be applied.

5. SPECIAL URGENCY DECISIONS (COUNCIL FUNCTIONS)

Members considered the following Urgent Council Decision:
Payments for agency and supply workers

It was agreed:

That in accordance with the Council Constitution’s Special Urgency procedure, the 
relevant committee Chair and the Group Leaders agreed that the decisions detailed 
above could not be reasonably be deferred.

A decision notice will be published on the Council’s website

6. SPECIAL URGENCY DECISIONS (EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS)  

Members considered the following Urgent Executive Decisions: 
        Community HUBS

It was agreed:

Document Pack Page 32



5

That in accordance with the Council Constitution’s Special Urgency procedure, the 
Chair of Scrutiny and the Group Leaders agreed that the decisions detailed above 
could not be reasonably be deferred.

             A decision notice will be published on the Council website.

7. FOR INFORMATION - LIST OF COVID 19 RELATED OPERATIONAL 
DECISIONS 

8. FOR INFORMATION - NOTES FROM THE LAST MEETING

COUNCILLOR D JONES
Chair

(Note:  The meeting started at 2pm and ended at 3.10pm.)

Document Pack Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Special Urgency (Executive Functions)
	FINAL Community Hubs
	Council inv UD
	MUSLIM Burials UD

	2 Special Urgency (Council Functions)
	3 Notes from the meeting of the COVID 19 EPG

